
CITY OF GRAHAM 
AGENDA 

TUESDAY, MAY 2, 2017 
7:00 P.M. 

Meeting called to order by the Mayor 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance  

1. Honorary Recognitions and Proclamations:
 Graham Recreation & Parks 10U Basketball League Champions – BSG Lady Heat

2. Consent Agenda:
a. Approval of Minutes – April 4, 2017 Regular Session
b. Tax Releases
c. Request from Alamance County Manager Bryan Hagood to block off the North and South side of

West Elm Street from Maple Street to the first turnaround in the island past the Criminal Courts
Building for the annual Memorial Day Ceremony on Monday, May 29, 2017 from 9:30 a.m. to 1:00
p.m.

d. Approve Resolution to grant easement to Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC to install and maintain
facilities on City property at 201 South Main Street, 206 South Maple Street and 116 West Pine
Street

3. Old Business:
a. Public Hearing: Appearance Commission (AM1701). Request by the City of Graham Appearance

Commission to rewrite their enabling Ordinance

4. Recommendations from Planning Board:
a. Public Hearing: Fee for Appeals (AM1704). A request by Staff to add an Appeal Fee to the

City of Graham Rates and Fees Schedule
b. Public Hearing: Planning Board Requirements (AM1702). A request by the Graham City Council to

amend the City of Graham Development Ordinance to permit real property owners within the City
limits to serve on the Planning Board and Board of Adjustment

5. Mission, Vision and Values Presentation

6. Connect NC Bond Grant:
a. Accept $500,000 Connect NC Bond Grant and Approve Project Budget

7. Impact Alamance Grant for Active Transportation:
a. Approve Resolution

8. Encroachment Discussion

9. Issues Not on Tonight’s Agenda

Page 1 of 51



 
 

PROCLAMATION HONORING THE BSG LADY HEAT 10U 

GIRLS BASKETBALL TEAM 

  

WHEREAS, through hard work, fight, grit and playing with a never 

give up mentality, the bsg lady heat girls basketball team  went undefeated 

in league play with a record of 8-0 and won the graham recreation and 

parks championship trophy; and 

   

WHEREAS, the bsg lady heat went 7-2 in the swac tournament and 

concluded their season by being named the swac 2017 10u state 

tournament champions; and   

 

WHEREAS, we recognize the following team members with great 

pride: 

    
dajra arthur  christina bowers 
madison brouillard  brooklyn coble 
presley lovette   joselyn perez 
aniyah rudd   kiya shavers 

 
   

coaches: chris brouillard, chris bowers, matt lovette, ryan coble 
 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, jerry peterman, mayor of the city of graham, do 

hereby express congratulations for the significant accomplishments 

achieved by the bsg lady heat 10u girls basketball team and also our 

gratitude for the pride and recognition they have brought to themselves, 

the graham recreation and parks department, and the entire graham 

community. 

 

this the 2nd day of may 2017. 

 

                 jerry peterman, mayor 
 city of graham 

Page 2 of 51



141 

 CITY OF GRAHAM 
REGULAR SESSION 

TUESDAY, APRIL 4, 2017 
7:00 P.M. 

 
The City Council of the City of Graham met in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, April 4, 
2017, in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building located at 201 South Main Street. 
 
Council Members Present:   Also Present: 
Mayor Jerry Peterman    Frankie Maness, City Manager 
Mayor Pro Tem Jimmy Linens   Aaron Holland, Assistant City Manager 
Council Member Griffin McClure  Darcy Sperry, City Clerk 
Council Member Chip Turner   Nathan Page, Planning Director 
Council Member Lee Kimrey   Keith Whited, City Attorney 

Tonya Mann, Utilities Director 
Shelby Smith, Pretreatment Coordinator 

              
Mayor Jerry Peterman called the meeting to order and presided at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Pro Tem Linens 
gave the invocation and everyone stood to recite the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Honorary Proclamations: 

 North Graham Elementary School – The Lion King Production Recognition 
Council Member Griffin McClure introduced North Graham Elementary Principal Ms. Nancy 
Cothren, Drama Teacher Mr. Jordan Clifton and several students in attendance and congratulated 
them for the successful production they recently put on at the school. 
 
 Andy Rumley – Planning Board/Board of Adjustment Proclamation 
Mayor Peterman read a proclamation honoring former Planning Board Chairman Mr. Andy Rumley 
for his service to the City.  Planning Board Vice Chairman Mr. Ricky Hall accepted the proclamation 
on behalf of Mr. Rumley. 

 

Page 3 of 51



142 

  Brad Bullis – 2016 Fireman of the Year Proclamation 
Mayor Peterman presented a proclamation to Mr. Brad Bullis recognizing him as the 2016 Graham 
Fire Department’s Fireman of the Year. 

 
 
 Adam Nicholson – 2016 Police Officer of the Year Proclamation 
Mayor Peterman presented a proclamation to Mr. Adam Nicholson recognizing him as the 2016 
Graham Police Department’s Officer of the Year. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 4 of 51



143 

  2017 Alcohol Awareness Month Proclamation 
Mayor Peterman presented a proclamation to Ms. Jennifer Arce-Navarete proclaiming April 2017 as 
Alcohol Awareness Month in the City of Graham. 

 
 2017 Arbor Day Proclamation 
Mayor Peterman presented the 2017 Arbor Day Proclamation to Ms. Elaine Murrin, Graham 
Appearance Commission Chairperson. 

 

 

Page 5 of 51



144 

 Consent Agenda: 

a. Approval of Minutes – March 7, 2017 Regular Session 
b. Approval of Minutes – March 23, 2017 Special Session 
c. Appoint Eric Crissman to Tree Board 
d. April 27, 2017 – Walk at Lunch Day Proclamation 

 
 

 
Council Member Chip Turner made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by Council 
Member McClure.  All voted in favor of the motion.  
 
Old Business: 

a. Boards and Commissions Meeting Venue Discussion 

At last month’s regular City Council meeting, Council Member Lee Kimrey asked that the Council 
consider requiring meetings in which grant monies are awarded to be held in the Council Chambers 
and be recorded.  It was decided at that time that due to Mayor Peterman’s absence at that meeting, 
this request would be placed on the April 4, 2017 agenda.  

Council Member Kimrey reiterated his belief that when grant monies are awarded, he would like to 
see those meetings held in the Council Chambers and have an audio recording done as well.  
Council Members referred to a recent meeting of the Graham Appearance Commission held at the 
Graham Civic Center.  During that meeting, which was not recorded, the Business Beautification 
Grant awards were made to various businesses. 

Ms. Murrin of 1213 Raspberry Run Graham stepped forward and advised Council that she was not 
aware that Council required a venue change and recording for a meeting as such.  Mayor Peterman 
advised that this is something Council is looking at requiring going forward. 

Page 6 of 51



145 

 Mr. Chuck Talley, 808 Sideview Street Graham stepped forward and advised that he attended the 
Appearance Commission meeting being discussed and encouraged Council to require such meetings 
be held in the Council Chambers in the future. 

By consensus, Council Members agreed that all future Boards and Commissions meetings by which 
there is to be an appropriation of grant monies will be held in the Council Chambers and be audio 
recorded. 

Recommendations from Planning Board: 

a. Public Hearing: Mallard Care Home (SUP1701). Request by Garry Wiley for a Special 
Use Permit to Allow a Family Care Home at 304 Mallard Creek Drive 

Mayor Peterman advised that this item had been withdrawn by Staff, adding that the applicant is not 
required to have a Special Use Permit for this request. 

b. Public Hearing: Steve’s Rezoning (CR1701). Request by Justin Long to Rezone 329 and 
331 West Harden Street from Light Industrial (I-1) to Conditional Business (C-B) 

Planning Director Nathan Page explained that this is a request to rezone the subject property from 
I-1 to C-B.  The applicant is proposing to “allow for further expansion to take place closer to the 
property line and not interfere with the parking lot.”  The proposed uses for the new zone would 
include all uses within General Business (B-2), and the rear and side yards would be reduced to zero.  
The front yard 30 foot setback will be maintained (reduced from the current 50 foot front yard).  
The property is currently functioning as a grocery store as well as a religious service building. 

Council Members and Staff discussed how this rezoning would affect the current businesses at this 
location and Mr. Page advised that he has granted a Unified Business Development Light use to the 
business owner.  With no further discussion forthcoming, Mayor Pro Tem Jimmy Linens asked that 
he be recused due to the fact that the petitioners are his daughter and son-in-law.  Mayor Peterman 
made a motion that Mayor Pro Tem Linens be recused, seconded by Council Member Kimrey.  All 
voted in favor of the motion. 

With no comments forthcoming, Mayor Peterman opened and closed the Public Hearing. 

Council Member McClure asked Mr. Page if he knew why one Planning Board Member had voted 
against recommending this rezoning.  Mr. Page stated he had no additional knowledge of anything 
other than what was in the Planning Board minutes from that meeting. 

Planning Board Member Mr. Dean Ward was in attendance and advised Council that he voted in 
error at the Planning Board meeting and is not against this rezoning. 

Council Member Kimrey made a motion that the application be approved with the following 
condition: 30 foot setback from Harden Street; and that the application is consistent with The 
Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan and this action is reasonable and in the public interest for the 
following reason: Permitting this Conditional Zoning will create a conforming structure and allow 
for future expansion of a successful business. Council Member McClure seconded the motion and 
all voted in favor of the motion. 

Mayor Pro Tem Linens rejoined the Council. 

 

 

Page 7 of 51



146 

 c. Public Hearing: Appearance Commission (AM1701). Request by the City of Graham 
Appearance Commission to Rewrite Their Enabling Ordinance 

Mr. Page explained that the Appearance Commission and Tree Board’s enabling ordinances are 
nestled within the Development Ordinance.  He added that it was his understanding that this 
proposed ordinance amendment was approved by the Appearance Commission prior to going to the 
Planning Board and Council.  Mr. Page further stated that this amendment would remove the 
stipulation that members of the Tree Board must be members of the Appearance Commission as 
well. 

Following a brief discussion between Council Members and Staff, Council Members expressed 
concern with the proposed language throughout this amendment.  Mr. Page stated that he had very 
little influence in the drafting of this proposed amendment, adding that the Appearance Commission 
was responsible for this draft.   

With no further discussion, Mayor Peterman opened the Public Hearing. 

Ms. Jan Searls of 526 East Pine Street Graham stepped forward to address Council.  She informed 
Council that she is currently the Chairman of the Tree Board and that this amendment would mean 
that those Tree Board members who currently serve on the Appearance Commission as well, would 
be leaving the Appearance Commission.   

Ms. Murrin stepped forward to answer questions from Council.  Council Members asked Ms. 
Murrin about the number of meetings the Appearance Commission held in 2016 and asked about 
the proposed language concerning residency requirements and removal of members and officers.  
Council Member Kimrey expressed concern with language allowing someone other than Council to 
remove members from boards and commissions.  Ms. Murrin was receptive to all suggestions from 
Council and admitted that she followed language found in a model ordinance when drafting this 
amendment.   

Ms. Murrin asked Council what the process is for appointing members to various boards and 
commissions.  Mayor Peterman stated he believes applications are received by the Clerk, sent to the 
boards and commissions and then they make a recommendation for appointment to Council.   

Mr. Tom Boney of the Alamance News asked Ms. Murrin what the underlying reason was for this 
proposed rewrite.  Ms. Murrin answered that it’s the Commission’s experience that the current 
ordinance is somewhat weak and does not reflect the Appearance Commission as they would like to 
see it, as it does not outline the Commission’s goals, functions and contributions they would like to 
see.  It also addresses having a seven member Appearance Commission.  Mr. Boney asked if the 
Appearance Commission had voted on this proposed language, whereby Ms. Murrin stated that 
Appearance Commission members have seen a copy of this proposed amendment, but said she 
doesn’t believe the Commission has voted on it.  Council Member McClure stated that he attends 
the Appearance Commission meetings and remembers it being discussed but not necessarily voted 
on. 

With no comments forthcoming, Mayor Peterman closed the Public Hearing. 

Council Members agreed that the language being proposed in this amendment needs revisions and 
also added that it must be voted on by the Appearance Commission before coming back to Council 
for final approval.  The Tree Board will also have to vote on being separated from the Appearance 
Commission.  Council Member McClure made a motion that this item be tabled to the May 2, 2017 
regularly scheduled City Council meeting, seconded my Council Member Kimrey.  All voted in favor 
of the motion. 

Page 8 of 51



147 

 Boards and Commissions: 

a. Planning Board: 
i. Appoint New Member to Serve the Remainder of Unexpired Term of Andy Rumley  

Mayor Peterman explained that Council must appoint a new member to the Planning Board.  This 
member will be an in city member and will serve the remainder of Mr. Rumley’s term.   

Council Member Kimrey asked when the term will expire.  City Clerk Darcy Sperry advised that this 
term expires June 30, 2018.  Council Member Kimrey inquired as to why these applications were not 
sent to the Planning Board prior to this Council meeting.  Mr. Page stated that requirement is not 
codified in the Development Ordinance and he was unaware of any concerns the Planning Board 
may have until after the applicants were notified that Council would be appointing a replacement at 
this meeting.  Mr. Page added that he doesn’t believe that it’s good practice to allow a board to 
choose their own replacements.  City Manager Frankie Maness stated that typically in the past, we 
have not had much interest in people wanting to serve on our board.  Last June, we had more 
applicants interested in the same board(s) than in years past and those applications came directly to 
the City Council. 

Council Member Kimrey referred to Mayor Peterman’s remarks earlier in the meeting and stated 
that he too was under the assumption that applications went to the boards for review prior to 
coming to Council for appointment.  Mayor Peterman advised that Ms. Sperry had sent him a note 
during this discussion stating that applications are not currently being sent to the boards prior to 
Council.  Mr. Maness said that how applications are handled is a decision of the Council.  He added 
that if Council would like for boards and commissions to make recommendations, we can do that.  
He reminded Council that one of the powers of Council is that they can appoint whom they wish to 
serve on boards and commissions.  Mr. Maness said that there has been some inconsistency 
throughout the years with some boards making recommendations and others going directly to 
Council for appointments. 

Mayor Peterman expressed concern with a board recommending someone and Council appointing 
someone else.  He wondered about the potential for animosity amongst that board’s members. 

Jeanette Beaudry of 308 East Harden Street stepped forward and expressed concern that she had 
submitted a volunteer application for the Planning Board yet her application was not one of those 
submitted to Council.  She added that in the past, she has been called and asked if she was interested 
in serving on the Planning Board and attended a Planning Board meeting.  She stated that at that 
time, it was between her and one other woman and when it came before Council, someone other 
than those two women was appointed.  She doesn’t think that’s fair.  Ms. Sperry admitted that if Ms. 
Beaudry had submitted an application for the Planning Board, she may have overlooked it.  She 
explained that when someone is appointed to a board, their application is moved from a pending 
folder to an archived one.  She stated that if Ms. Beaudry’s application had multiple boxes checked 
for multiple boards, she may have inadvertently moved the application without retaining a copy of it 
in the pending folder.  

Ms. Searls stepped forward and expressed concern with membership commitments to boards and 
commissions.  She eluded to the fact that someone can check all boxes on the current application 
without knowing what commitment level is for each board.  She suggested that there be separate 
volunteer applications for boards.  Mayor Peterman stated that he doesn’t believe checking all boxes 
is an issue, instead not having enough applicants has been more of an issue.  

Page 9 of 51



148 

 Mr. Boney stated that the approach used by other local municipalities is that the application is 
submitted to the City Clerk and the City Council makes the appointment without input from the 
various boards and commissions.  He added that Council may want to seek a recommendation from 
various boards for reappointments, but not initial appointments.  Mayor Peterman stated that he 
liked that direction. 

Mayor Peterman asked Council how they would like to proceed.  Council Member Kimrey stated 
that he would like to proceed with the appointment due to the fact that the applicants had been 
informed that Council would be making an appointment at this meeting.  All other Council 
Members agreed to proceed with the appointment. 

Mr. Nathan Perry of 213 Guthrie Street Graham stepped forward and thanked Council for 
considering his application.  Council Member McClure asked Mr. Perry about his experience with 
the Company Shops in Burlington.  Mr. Perry replied that he believes that affiliation will be of great 
value here in Graham.  Mayor Pro Tem Linens pointed out that Mr. Perry is currently serving on the 
Graham Recreation Commission. 

Ms. Searls stepped forward and spoke on behalf of applicant Mr. Eric Crissman.  She stated that a 
family matter kept him from being at this meeting himself and added that Mr. Crissman grew up in 
Graham and is interested in Graham’s energy going forward.   

Council Member Kimrey nominated Mr. Perry while Mayor Peterman nominated Mr. Crissman.  
Mayor Peterman polled each Council Member for their vote.  Voting for Mr. Perry were Mayor Pro 
Tem Linens, Council Member McClure and Council Member Kimrey.  Recognizing that Mr. Perry 
received a majority vote, Mayor Peterman advised that he would vote for Mr. Perry.  Mr. Perry was 
appointed to serve the remainder of Mr. Rumley’s term.  Appointment carried 4-1.  Ayes: Mayor 
Peterman, Mayor Pro Tem Linens, Council Member McClure and Council Member Kimrey.  Nays: 
Council Member Turner.    

Wastewater Treatment Plant Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of 
Mebane: 

a. Approve Agreement 

Mr. Maness explained that this proposed agreement will further utility operations between Graham 
and Mebane.  He added that the City of Graham and the City of Mebane have partnered in utilities 
since June 22, 1973, as co-owners of the Graham-Mebane Water Treatment Plant and Reservoir. 
The Cities further partnered in utilities during the creation of the NCCP, in which water and sewer 
systems were interconnected and Graham began receiving wastewater from Mebane.  In 2006, the 
City of Graham commissioned the construction of the Cherry Lane Pump Station with 
regionalization of sewer collection as a secondary purpose.  The City of Mebane is requesting that 
the City of Graham consider a wastewater treatment plant capacity allocation of 750,000 gallons per 
day (.750 MGD).  Under the proposed agreement, up to 750,000 gallons per day of wastewater from 
the Mebane collection system may be conveyed by the Cherry Lane Pump Station and treated by 
Graham.   

The financial operations under the agreement would look very similar to that of the existing water 
plant process by which operating costs are divided based on actual flow and capital costs are divided 
by the allocation of the capacity of the plant.  The existing water and sewer arrangement under the 
NCCP agreement is unaffected by this proposed agreement.  In exchange for the 750,000 gallons 
per day allocation, it is proposed that Mebane will pay the City of Graham a total of $2,682,464 in 
annual installments over 20 years.   

Page 10 of 51



149 

 The City of Graham will realize an undetermined amount of savings in operating expenses and 
future capital outlays for the WWTP.  Over 60% of annual costs to operate the WWTP are fixed, 
and therefore would be the same regardless of the amount of wastewater treated. 

Council Members and Staff discussed when Mebane would start sending sewer to us.  Mr. Maness 
stated that it could be years before we see any volume, but at this point, he cannot say when Mebane 
would start sending anything to us.  Mr. Maness advised that in addition to the $2,682,464, Mebane 
would be charged a portion of capital costs and other related costs incurred by us.  He added that 
assuming the City of Mebane sends its entire allocation of 750,000 gallons per day, the wastewater 
plant utilization would return to its 1996 flow amount and still have 40% of its capacity available.  
Mr. Maness advised that Utilities Director Tonya Mann and Pretreatment Coordinator Shelby Smith 
were present to answer any technical questions Council may have but that this agreement is more 
financial than technical in nature. 

Council and Staff continued discussing capacity, finances, the Cherry Lane Pump Station, how this 
agreement may lessen the burden on the Graham taxpayers, wear and tear on equipment and if this 
agreement would prevent Graham from being able to service a large sewer user in the future.  Mr. 
Maness stated if a large sewer customer should come to Graham, the revenues gained should 
support any improvements needed to service that customer. 

With no further discussion forthcoming, Mayor Peterman made a motion to approve the 
Graham/Mebane Wastewater Treatment Plant Intergovernmental Agreement, seconded by Council 
Member Turner.  All voted in favor of the motion. 

Issues Not on Tonight’s Agenda: 

Assistant City Manager Aaron Holland reminded Council that the Little Alamance Creek Stream 
Clean Up is scheduled for Saturday, April 22nd at 9:00 a.m. in Burlington and the Annual Stormwater 
Public meeting will be held Wednesday, May 3rd at 5:30 p.m. here in the Council Chambers. 
 
Council Member McClure challenged the Council to help address the negative impact the County’s 
recent revaluation has had on Graham property owners.  He asked Council to look at demands and 
what motivates people to want to live in our community. 
 
Council Member McClure also congratulated the 2017 NCAA National Champion Men’s Basketball 
Team. 
 
Council Member Kimrey gave an update on the Southern Loop.  He explained that the 
Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) recently met and they are unwilling to accept Council’s 
request to eliminate the Southern Loop from Graham altogether.  NCDOT requires an alternative 
route to be in place before it can be eliminated.  They have agreed to have the Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (MPO) reach out to Graham Staff and look at other potential routes.  
Council Member Kimrey has encouraged Graham Staff members to look at routes outside the City 
of Graham and outside the City’s ETJ.  Once those routes are established, they will be brought 
before Council for a vote, if it is in Graham’s jurisdiction.  Mr. Page explained that the City had been 
protecting the corridor that was adopted up until the Council adopted the resolution no longer 
supporting it.  We are no longer protecting any right of way but rather deferring protection of said 
right of way to NCDOT.  Council Member Kimrey asked Mr. Page if we no longer are recognizing 
the route that is on the map.  Mr. Page said that we are happy to recognize it but that the authority 
switched from the City of Graham to NCDOT when Council adopted the resolution no longer 
supporting it.  Council advised Staff to be sure to inform any potential builder that they need to 
check with NCDOT if their project falls within the current route. 

Page 11 of 51



150 

  
Mayor Peterman reminded Council of the Graham Sports Hall of Fame Banquet and the Graham 
Regional Park ribbon cutting. 
 
At 9:15 p.m. Council Member Kimrey made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Council Member 
McClure.  All voted in favor of the motion. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
      Darcy Sperry, City Clerk 

 

Page 12 of 51



Page 13 of 51



Page 14 of 51



P:\Agenda Pending Items\2017\05‐02‐2017\Duke Energy Easement\1_Staff Report Duke Energy Easement_City Hall.docx 

STAFF REPORT 

SUBJECT:  DUKE  ENERGY  EASEMENT  AGREEMENT  AT  CITY  HALL  PROPERTY 

PREPARED  BY:  AARON  HOLLAND,  ASSISTANT  CITY MANAGER 

 

REQUESTED ACTION: 

Approve Resolution to Grant Easement to Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC to install and maintain facilities at the City 
Hall property. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:  

Over the years, the City Hall building has been plagued 
with the loss of power which has, at times, caused major 
disruption to citywide operations due to the fact that 
internet and data traffic for all City departments run 
through City Hall. Moreover, these disruptions have also 
affected the public’s access to pay their bills, register for 
athletics, etc… 
 
This issue is due to the service line feeding our building 
being old and in need of replacement. Duke Energy has 
been contacted numerous times about this issue and is 
now seeking to remedy the situation by replacing the line 
tentatively on May 21, 2017. In order to proceed, Duke 
Energy is requesting a twenty (20) foot wide easement 
area for the purposes of transmitting and distributing 
electrical energy and for communication purposes. This 
easement area will provide Duke Energy with the 
necessary space to replace the line that feeds City Hall. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

STAFF  RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval. The service line is in desperate need of replacement and granting this easement will provide Duke 
Energy with the necessary space to remedy the issue. 

SUGGESTED  MOTION(S): 

I move we approve the Resolution to Grant Easement to Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC for the purposes of 
transmitting and distributing electrical energy and for communication purposes. 

Page 15 of 51



P:\Agenda Pending Items\2017\05‐02‐2017\Duke Energy Easement\1_Staff Report Duke Energy Easement_City Hall.docx 

RESOLUTION TO GRANT EASEMENT TO DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS, LLC AT 
CITY HALL PROPERTY  

 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Graham “City” owns the parcels identified by Alamance County GIS 
parcel id(s) 145789, 145774, and 145775, also known as 201 South Main Street, 206 South 
Maple Street, and 116 West Pine Street; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Hall building has been plagued with power loss over the years due to the 
need of a service line replacement; 
 
WHEREAS, Duke Energy Carolina’s LLC requests twenty (20) foot wide easement for the 
purposes of transmitting and distributing electrical energy and for communication purposes; 
 
WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-273 permits a city to grant easements over, through, under, or across 
any city property; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Graham that:   
 
The City of Graham (“City”) hereby grants an easement to Duke Energy Carolina’s LLC for the 
purposes of transmitting and distributing electrical energy and for communication purposes. 
 
BE IT FURTER RESOLVED that the City Manager and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 
execute the necessary documents on behalf of the City. 
 
Adopted this 2nd day of May 2017. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
       
_________________________    ________________________ 
Darcy Sperry, City Clerk     Jerry Peterman, Mayor 

 

Page 16 of 51



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EASEMENT 
 
 

NORTH CAROLINA 
ALAMANCE COUNTY       
 

 
THIS EASEMENT (“Easement”) is made this                         day of                                                     , 20               

(“Effective Date”), from CITY OF GRAHAM, a municipal corporation, (“GRANTOR,” whether one or more), to Duke 

Energy Carolinas, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company (“DEC”); its successors, licensees, and assigns. 

 
WITNESSETH: 

THAT GRANTOR, for and in consideration of the sum of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00), the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant unto DEC, its successors, lessees, licensees, transferees, 
permittees, apportionees, and assigns, the perpetual right, privilege, and easement to go in and upon the land of 
GRANTOR situated in Graham Township, described as follows: Parcels 145789, 145774, 145775, being the property 
described in deeds to the City of Graham recorded in Deed Book 320, Page 165, Deed Book 884, Page 975, and Deed 
Book 1732, Page 351, Alamance County Registry, (the “Property”), LESS AND EXCEPT any prior out-conveyances, and 
to construct, reconstruct, operate, patrol, maintain, inspect, repair, replace, relocate, add to, modify and remove  electric 
and/or communication facilities thereon including but not limited to, supporting structures such as poles, cables, wires, 
underground conduits, enclosures/transformers, vaults and manholes and other appurtenant apparatus and equipment 
(the “Facilities”) within an easement area being twenty (20) feet wide, together with an area ten (10) feet wide on all sides 
of the foundation of any DEC enclosure/transformer, vault or manhole (the “Easement Area”), for the purpose of 
transmitting and distributing electrical energy and for communication purposes of DEC and Incumbent Local Exchange 
Carriers.  The centerline of the Facilities shall be the center line of the Easement Area. 

 
 

 The right, privilege and easement shall include the following rights granted to DEC: (a) ingress and egress over 
the Easement Area and over adjoining portions of the Property (using lanes, driveways and paved areas where practical 
as determined by DEC); (b) to relocate the Facilities and Easement Area on the Property to conform to any future highway 
or street relocation, widening or improvement; (c) to trim and keep clear from the Easement Area, now or at any time in 
the future, trees, limbs, undergrowth, structures or other obstructions, and to trim or clear dead, diseased, weak or leaning 
trees or limbs outside of the Easement Area which, in the opinion of DEC, might interfere with or fall upon the Facilities; 
(d) to install guy wires and anchors extending beyond the limits of the Easement Area; and (e) all other rights and 
privileges reasonably necessary or convenient for DEC’s safe, reliable and efficient installation, operation, and 
maintenance of the Facilities and for the enjoyment and use of the Easement Area for the purposes described herein. 

 
  

  

Prepared By:     T Craver  
Return To:  Duke Energy Carolinas 
 2500 Fairfax Rd 
 Greensboro, NC 27407 
   
 

Page 17 of 51



 
 
 
   (Notary Seal) 

 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said rights, privilege, and easement unto DEC, its successors, licensees, and assigns, 
forever, and GRANTOR, for itself, its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, covenants to and with 
DEC that GRANTOR is the lawful owner of the Property and the Easement Area in fee and has the right to convey said 
rights and Easement. 
 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this EASEMENT has been executed by GRANTOR and is effective as of the Effective 
Date herein. 

. 
 

 CITY of GRAHAM  

 
 
 By:   

 Frankie Maness, City Manager 
 
  
 
NORTH CAROLINA,                                                        COUNTY 
 

I,                                                             , a Notary Public of                                                       County, North 

Carolina, certify that Frankie Maness personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he is the City 

Manger of the City of Graham, and that by authority duly given and as the act of said City, the foregoing EASEMENT was 

signed. 

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this                  day of                                                , 20        . 
 
 
 
    
 Notary Public 
 
  My commission expires:   
 
 
  My commission expires:   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 18 of 51



STAFF	REPORT	
Prepared	by	Nathan	Page,	Planning	Director	

Text Amendment for: Article VI. Appearance 
Commission 
Type of Request: Text Amendment 
 
 
 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on March 21, 2017 
City Council on April 4, 2017, May 2, 2017 
Contact Information 
N/A

Summary	
The Appearance Commission has proposed a rewrite of their 
enabling language within the Development Ordinance. This 
amendment also removes the requirement for the Tree Board 
members to be members of the Appearance Commission. City 
Council reviewed this item at their April 4th meeting and 
requested that staff bring back the language with suggested 
changes at the next Council meeting. 
 
The following amendments to the Development Ordinance are 
proposed: 

Existing Language: 

Section 10.290  Created; duties 
There is hereby created a commission to be known as the Graham 
appearance commission.  The duties and functions of the 
commission shall be as follows: 

(1)  The appearance commission shall be an advisory board to the mayor and city council and shall 
have no administrative duties. 

(2)  The appearance commission is established for the purpose of promoting, planning, advising and 
encouraging the citizens of Graham to participate in providing for an appreciation of aesthetic 
values. 

(3)  The appearance commission may accept gifts or bequests with the approval of city council.  

Section 10.291  Membership; appointments 
The appearance commission shall be composed of 15 members, appointed by the city council.  The 
commission shall consist of a minimum of 14 residents of the city; one member may be a nonresident of 
the city who resides in its planning and zoning jurisdiction.  

Section 10.292  Officers; voting 
The appearance commission shall elect a chairman, a vice‐chairman and a secretary from its 
membership.  Each member shall have the right to vote on any question 

Project Name 

Appearance Commission 
(AM1701) 

Location 
city‐wide 

Current Zoning 
not applicable 

Proposed Zoning 
not applicable 

Overlay District 
not applicable 

Staff Recommendation 
see below 

Page 19 of 51



Staff Report, Text Amendment for Appearance Commission (AM1701)  Page 2 of 4 
Planning Board on March 21, 2017 

Section 10.293.  Meetings 
The appearance commission may adopt a suitable time and place for its meetings.   

Section 10.294.  Removal 
A member of the appearance commission may be removed by the city council for cause and upon the 
recommendation of at least 10 members of the commission, provided that any member who misses two 
consecutive meetings without cause may be removed by the city council.   

Section 10.295.  Term of office 
Terms of office for commission members shall be four years.  Nothing in this section shall affect the 
terms of members first appointed.  Members may be appointed to succeed themselves.  

Sections 10.296‐10.309 Reserved 

Proposed Language: 

Section 10.290  Created; duties 

The purpose of the Appearance Commission shall be to serve as an advisor to City Council by identifying 
and making recommendations for ways to improve the appearance of the City of Graham.   

The duties of the Appearance Commission will be to: 

a. develop a partnership between citizens, private organizations, businesses, and government 
agencies for the purpose of bringing attention to the City of Graham through visual appeal; 

b. promote programs for business owners that will assist them in making improvements to the 
exterior façade of their establishments; 

c. encourage community involvement by initiating and planning events that will contribute to the 
City’s aesthetic appeal; 

d. serve as a resource for residents seeking information regarding issues throughout the City that 
have an impact on its appearance. 

a. serve as an advisory board to the mayor and city council and shall have no administrative duties; 
b. develop a partnership between citizens, private organizations, businesses, and government 

agencies for the purpose of bringing attention to the City of Graham through visual appeal; 
c. promote programs for business owners that will assist them in making improvements to the 

exterior façade of their establishments; 
d. encourage community involvement by initiating and planning events that will contribute to the 

City’s aesthetic appeal; 
e. The appearance commission may accept gifts or bequests with the approval of city council. 

  

Section 10.291  Membership; appointments 

The Appearance Commission shall be limited to a total membership of seven (7) persons. Members of 
the Appearance Commission will be appointed by the Graham City Council. Appearance Commission 
members shall serve a three‐year term and may be appointed to subsequent three‐year terms. If a 
member leaves mid‐term, that vacancy will not be filled until the following term. If a conflict of interest, 
as defined under Section 10.2, should arise for a member, they will be required to bring it to the 
attention of the Commission and abstain from discourse and voting regarding such matters. Members 

Page 20 of 51



Staff Report, Text Amendment for Appearance Commission (AM1701)  Page 3 of 4 
Planning Board on March 21, 2017 

serving on the Appearance Commission will be required to reside within the city limits or ETJ of Graham, 
NC for the entirety of their term.   

The Appearance Commission shall be limited to a total membership of seven (7) persons with up to two 
(2) members residing in the extraterritorial jurisdiction of Graham. Members shall be appointed by the 
Graham City Council upon receipt of a completed application submitted to the city clerk’s office. 
Appearance Commission members shall serve a three‐year term and may be appointed to subsequent 
three‐year terms.  

 

Section 10.292  Meetings; removal 

The Graham Appearance Commission shall hold regularly scheduled meetings on a day and time agreed 
upon by a majority of the members. Any member who misses two meetings during the current year may 
be subject to removal from the Appearance Commission.  A member may be removed for cause by the 
City Council for reasons including, but not limited to, repeated unexcused absences. If a member is 
absent or expects to be absent for reasons of health or time out‐of‐town, that member may request 
that the absence(s) be excused. Before a member is removed for cause, they shall receive notification 
from the City Council describing the proposed action and giving the member an opportunity to state 
why the action should or should not be taken. 

Section 10.2934  Voting 

Each regular member shall have one vote equal in weight. A quorum consists of at least 50% of current 
Commission membership and voting members must be present for any binding vote to take place.  

For any meeting of the Appearance Commission, a quorum consists of a majority of its members. Votes 
taken by the commission shall “pass” when majority of those members present vote in favor of a 
motion. If a conflict of interest, as defined under Section 10.2, should arise for a member, they will be 
required to bring it to the attention of the Commission and abstain from discourse and voting regarding 
such matters. 

 

Section 10.2945  Officers 

The Appearance Commission shall elect a Chair, Vice‐Chair, and Secretary by a majority vote of the 
Commission members present. Officers will serve for a period of one term (September through June). 
Officers may succeed themselves for an indefinite period based on Commission approval and 
subsequent voting. An officer can be removed from his/her position by a vote that is two‐thirds of 
quorum. Advance notice of the motion to remove an officer must be given to the officer seven (7) days 
prior to the meeting at which the vote on the motion will be taken. Officers will serve for a period of one 
year or until he/she is re‐elected or his/her successor is elected. 

Section 10.293  Distribution of Funds 

Request and administration of funds necessary to support the activities of the Appearance Commission 
are the responsibility of the Commission Chairman.  Approval for funding requests for Commission‐

Page 21 of 51



Staff Report, Text Amendment for Appearance Commission (AM1701)  Page 4 of 4 
Planning Board on March 21, 2017 

sponsored activities will come from a vote by the Appearance Commission. 

Section 10.2956‐10.309     Reserved 
 

Existing	Language:	

DIVISION	2.	TREE	BOARD		

Section	10.320	Created;	composition;	qualifications		

There	is	hereby	created	a	tree	board	for	the	city,	which	shall	consist	of	five	(5)	members,	citizens	
and	residents	of	this	city,	who	shall	be	appointed	by	the	mayor	with	the	approval	of	the	city	council.	
The	members	of	the	tree	board	shall	be	members	of	the	appearance	commission.	The	city	
horticulturist	shall	be	an	ex	officio	member	of	the	tree	board.	

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________	

Proposed	Language:	

DIVISION	2.	TREE	BOARD		

Section	10.320	Created;	composition;	qualifications		

There	is	hereby	created	a	tree	board	for	the	city,	which	shall	consist	of	five	(5)	members,	citizens	
and	residents	of	this	city,	who	shall	be	appointed	by	the	mayor	with	the	approval	of	the	city	council.	
The	members	of	the	tree	board	shall	be	members	of	the	appearance	commission.	The	city	
horticulturist	shall	be	an	ex	officio	member	of	the	tree	board.	

	

Conformity	to	The	Graham	2035	Comprehensive	Plan	and	Other	Adopted	Plans	

Not applicable. 
 

Applicable Planning District Policies and Recommendations 

 Not applicable; city‐wide. 

Staff	Recommendation	
Due to the amendment being recommended by the Appearance Commission, staff feels the City Council 
should use their discretion to determine the alignment with their vision for the future of the City.  

 The proposed amendment, being proposed by the Appearance Commission, more clearly defines 
the future requirements and duties for Appearance Commission Members. 

Planning District 
All 

Development Type 
All 

Page 22 of 51



     572  

    
  

PLANNING ZONING BOARD 
Tuesday, April 18, 2017 

 
The Planning & Zoning Board held their regular meeting on Tuesday, April 18, 2017 in the Council Chambers 
of the Graham Municipal Building at 7:00 p.m.  Board members present were Ricky Hall, Bonnie Blalock, 
Barry Hicks, Nate Perry, Kenneth Dixon and Dean Ward. Member absent was Michael Benesch. Staff 
members present were Nathan Page, Planning Director, Aaron Holland, Assistant City Manager and Martha 
Johnson Zoning & Inspection Technician. Vice Chair Ricky Hall welcomed the Planning Board’s new member 
Nate Perry. Mr. Hall then called the meeting to order, gave the Overview of the Board, general meeting rules 
and he gave the invocation. 

  
 1.  Approval of the March 21, 2017 meeting minutes. Dean Ward made a motion for approval, second by 

Bonnie Blalock.  All voted in favor. Next all members of the Planning Board were sworn in by Martha Johnson, 
notary.  

2. Nomination of Chair and Vice Chair: Mr. Hall stated the Board needed new elections for officers since Andy 
Rumley resigned from the Board.  Dean Ward nominated Ricky Hall for Chair, second by Bonnie Blalock. All 
voted aye. Bonnie Blalock nominated Dean Ward for Vice Chair, second by Ricky Hall. All voted aye. 

3.  Ricky Hall asked Nathan Page to elaborate concerning the SUP1701 for 304 Mallard Creek Dr. that was 
tabled at the last Planning Board meeting that got removed. Mr. Page said the case was for a family care or 
group home and during the application process that it came out it was only a family care home. That was a use 
by right for that location and it didn’t need a Special Use Permit.  

4. New Business:  
 
a. AM1702 Planning Board Requirements. An amendment by City Council to permit real estate 
owners within the City Limits to serve on the Planning Board.  
 
The following people spoke against this amendment for various reasons: 
Eric Crissman  208 Albright Avenue 
Tom Boney  114 W Elm Street 
Jan Searls  526 E Pine Street 
 
It was the consensus of the Board that they were against this change. Dean Ward made a motion to deny 
this approval, second by Bonnie Blalock. All voted aye to deny this amendment. 
 
b. AM1703 Food Trucks. An amendment by Debarah Wilson to permit Temporary Outdoor Sales 
within the Downtown Business District. Mr. Page stated that Ms. Wilson has proposed amending the 
permitted uses for the B-1 in the Development Ordinance. This request is being made to assist those 
who are using the City of Graham for an event or festival to allow food trucks at planned events in 
Downtown Graham. There was also alternative language proposed for allowing food trucks not only for 
events and require not to be located within 100 feet of primary entrance to a competing business along 
with written permission from the owner. The following people spoke concerning this amendment: 
 
Tom Boney  114 W Elm Street 
Jennifer Talley 808 Sideview Street 
Chuck Talley  808 Sideview Street 
Debarah Wilson 110 Home Avenue 
Janet Searls  526 E Pine Street 
Eric Crissman  208 Albright Avenue 

Page 23 of 51



573    
   

 
 
A citizen expressed concern about public health and safety with the food trucks, as well as stating they 
have significant contribution to the City of Graham or verification of paying sales tax. It was also 
mentioned that food trucks are in and very poplar and they would give the citizens more options to eat. 
Some of the Board members would like to see the food trucks be allowed and felt the City needs 
something to get folks into downtown Graham without hurting the restaurants already there. Guidelines 
and restrictions need to be setup by the City for food trucks.  
 
Ricky Hall made a motion to approve the alternative language part of the amendment, second by Nate 
Perry. The vote was 2 to 4 with Dean Ward, Bonnie Blalock, Barry Hicks and Kenneth Dixon 
dissenting.  The motion was defeated. Dean Ward made a motion to table this item and send it back to 
the City Planner and City Council for more review and outreach to the public. Barry Hicks seconded the 
motion. The vote was 4 to 2 with Ricky Hall and Kenneth Dixon dissenting.  
 
c. AM1704 Appeal Fee. An amendment proposed by staff for a fee to offset administrative expenses for 
appeals, to be refunded if the appeal is overturned. Mr. Page stated this was an amendment which the 
Planning Board had discussed at a previous meeting and it has come around again with it nearing budget 
time. There were several comments made concerning the legality of this amendment and possibly would 
be necessary to have the City Attorney review this before recommending it to City Council. Dean Ward 
made a motion to deny this appeal fee because of depriving citizens of due process, second by Bonnie 
Blalock. The vote was 5 to 1 to deny with Ricky Hall casting the dissenting vote. 
   

No further business the meeting was adjourned.  
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Martha Johnson 

 

Page 24 of 51



STAFF	REPORT	
Prepared	by	Nathan	Page,	Planning	Director	

Text Amendment for: Sections 10.46 Duties of 
zoning enforcement officer, board of 
adjustment and city council as to matters of 
appeal 

Type of Request: Text Amendment 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 18, 2017    
City Council on May 2, 2017 

Contact Information 
N/A 

Summary	
The Planning Board has proposed adding a fee for appeals to the 
Ordinance, in an attempt to cover the costs the City must bear 
when they provide public notice for appeals, and to help offset 
the staff requirements for the quasi‐judicial hearings. 

The following amendments to the Development Ordinance are 
proposed: 
Existing Language: 

Section 10.46  Duties of zoning enforcement officer, 
board of adjustment and city council as 
to matters of appeal 

It is the intention of this article that all questions arising in 
connection with the enforcement of this article shall be 
presented first to the zoning enforcement officer, that such 
questions shall come before the board of adjustment only on 
appeal from the zoning enforcement officer, and that from the decision of the board of adjustment 
recourse shall be to the courts as provided by law.  It is further the intention of this article that the 
duties of the Graham City Council in connection with this article shall not include the hearing of appeals 
from the action of the zoning enforcement officer.  The duties of the city council in connection with this 
article shall be only the duty of considering and passing upon any proposed amendment or repeal of this 
article. 

Proposed Language: 

Section 10.46  Duties of zoning enforcement officer, board of adjustment and city council as 
to matters of appeal 

It is the intention of this article that all questions arising in connection with the enforcement of this 
article shall be presented first to the zoning enforcement officer, that such questions shall come before 
the board of adjustment only on appeal from the zoning enforcement officer, and that from the decision 
of the board of adjustment recourse shall be to the courts as provided by law. In the event of appeal of 

Project Name 

Fee for Appeals (AM1704) 

Location 
city‐wide 

Current Zoning 
not applicable 

Proposed Zoning 
not applicable 

Overlay District 
not applicable 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval 

Page 25 of 51



Staff Report, Text Amendment for Fee for Appeal (AM1704)  Page 2 of 2 
Planning Board on April 18, 2016 

an administrative decision, a fee fixed by the city council and kept on file in the office of the city clerk 
shall be paid to the City of Graham to cover the costs of advertising and a portion of the administrative 
expenses involved. However, in the event that the staff decision is overturned by the Board of 
Adjustment, the fee shall be returned to the applicant in full. 
 It is further the intention of this article that the duties of the Graham City Council in connection with 
this article shall not include the hearing of appeals from the action of the zoning enforcement officer.  
The duties of the city council in connection with this article shall be only the duty of considering and 
passing upon any proposed amendment or repeal of this article. 

Conformity	to	The	Graham	2035	Comprehensive	Plan	and	Other	Adopted	Plans	

Not applicable. 

Applicable Planning District Policies and Recommendations 

 Not applicable; city‐wide.

Staff	Recommendation	
Based on the comprehensive plan, staff recommends approval of the text amendment. The following 
supports this recommendation: 

 The proposed amendment will reduce the incidence of frivolous appeals, thus decreasing the
administrative burden on the City. However, it will allow valid cases to move forward without a
financial burden for applicants.

Planning District 
All 

Development Type 
All 

Page 26 of 51



Page 27 of 51



City	Council	
Decision	&	Statement	of	Consistency	

Per NCGS 160A‐383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. When adopting or rejecting any zoning amendment, 
the City Council shall also approve a statement describing whether its 
action is consistent with the “The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan” and 
briefly explaining why the City Council considers the action taken to be 
reasonable and in the public interest. The Planning Board shall provide a 
written recommendation to the City Council, but a comment by the 
Planning Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the “The 
Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan” shall not preclude consideration or 
approval of the proposed amendment by the City Council. 

Choose one… 

  I move that the text amendment be APPROVED. 

  I move that the text amendment be DENIED. 

Choose one… 

  The text amendment is consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

  The text amendment is not fully consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

State reasons… 

This action is reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons: 

 

 

 

 

This report reflects the decision of the City Council, this the 2nd day of May, 2017. 

Attest: 

   
Gerald R. Peterman, Mayor 

   
Darcy L. Sperry, City Clerk 

Fee for Appeals (AM1704) 

Type of Request 
Text Amendment 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 18, 2017 
City Council on May 2, 2017 

Page 28 of 51



STAFF	REPORT	
Prepared	by	Nathan	Page,	Planning	Director	

Text Amendment for: Section 10.17 Created 
Type of Request: Text Amendment 
 
 
 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 18, 2017 
City Council on May 2, 2017 
Contact Information 
N/A

Summary	
The City Council has proposed amending the residency 
requirement for Planning Board members to the Development 
Ordinance 
 
The following amendments to the Development Ordinance are 
proposed: 

Existing Language: 

Section 10.17  Created 
There is hereby created a planning board, referred to in this 
article as the "board," to be composed of seven members, five 
residents and citizens of the City of Graham, appointed by the city 
and two members appointed by the county commissioners to 
represent the extraterritorial area. All members of the board, 
before entering upon their duties, shall take and subscribe to the 
oath of office required to be taken by officials of the city. 

Proposed Language: 

Section 10.17  Created 
There is hereby created a planning board, referred to in this article as the "board," to be composed of 
seven members, five residents and citizens of the City of Graham, or real property owners within the 
City limits, appointed by the city and two members appointed by the county commissioners to represent 
the extraterritorial area. All members of the board, before entering upon their duties, shall take and 
subscribe to the oath of office required to be taken by officials of the city. 
 

Conformity	to	The	Graham	2035	Comprehensive	Plan	and	Other	Adopted	Plans	

Not applicable. 
 

Applicable Planning District Policies and Recommendations 

 Not applicable; city‐wide. 

Project Name 

PB Requirements (AM1702) 

Location 
city‐wide 

Current Zoning 
not applicable 

Proposed Zoning 
not applicable 

Overlay District 
not applicable 

Staff Recommendation 
see below 

Planning District 
All 

Development Type 
All 

Page 29 of 51



Staff Report, Text Amendment for PB Requirements (AM1702)  Page 2 of 2 
Planning Board on April 18, 2017 

Staff	Recommendation	
Because of the nature of this amendment, staff acknowledges that the authority to appoint and remove 
members of the Planning Board lie solely with the City Council, who shall make decisions regarding 
requirements. 

 The proposed amendment relaxes who may serve on the Planning Board, and allows the City Council 
more discretion regarding who may best represent the City’s goals. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 30 of 51



Page 31 of 51



City	Council	
Decision	&	Statement	of	Consistency	

Per NCGS 160A‐383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. When adopting or rejecting any zoning amendment, 
the City Council shall also approve a statement describing whether its 
action is consistent with the “The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan” and 
briefly explaining why the City Council considers the action taken to be 
reasonable and in the public interest. The Planning Board shall provide a 
written recommendation to the City Council, but a comment by the 
Planning Board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the “The 
Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan” shall not preclude consideration or 
approval of the proposed amendment by the City Council. 

Choose one… 

  I move that the text amendment be APPROVED. 

  I move that the text amendment be DENIED. 

Choose one… 

  The text amendment is consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

  The text amendment is not fully consistent with The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

State reasons… 

This action is reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons: 

 

 

 

 

This report reflects the decision of the City Council, this the 2nd day of May, 2017. 

Attest: 

   
Gerald R. Peterman, Mayor 

   
Darcy L. Sperry, City Clerk 

PB Requirements (AM1702) 

Type of Request 
Text Amendment 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 18, 2017 
City Council on May 2, 2017 

Page 32 of 51



P:\Agenda Pending Items\2017\05‐02‐2017\2_Staff Report HR Intern Mission.docx 

STAFF REPORT 

SUBJECT:  HR  INTERN  SCHOOL  PROJECT  –  CREATING MISSION,  VISION  AND  VALUES  
STATEMENTS  FOR  THE CITY OF  GRAHAM 

PREPARED  BY:  LORRIE  ANDREWS,  HUMAN  RESOURCES  MANAGER  

 

REQUESTED ACTION: 

Receive report and discuss internship project related to Mission, Vision, and Values statements.  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:  

The City of Graham partners with Elon University to afford for an internship program for its students.  This 

partnership yielded our first intern in Human Resources during the spring semester.  Dakota DeYent, a senior 

Human Services major and candidate for graduation in May, was tasked with several projects for the duration of 

his internship.  His first project was to assist with an orientation program for our new hires and the second project 

was to help program and implement a new performance evaluation system.  Both programs are built around 

Mission, Visions and Values.  However, Mr. DeYent discovered during this process that the City did not have any 

record of establishing these statements, and coincidently, his class project was structured around evaluating 

Mission, Vision, and Values. Due to the absence of these statements, his class project evolved into researching the 

potential creation of Mission, Vision, and Values statements for the City of Graham and demonstrating their 

application to the City.   

To create the Mission, Vision, and Value statements, research found that input is needed from every section, 

department, or other invested groups in order to create an effective and widely accepted statement. To do this, 

employees, managers and members of the City Council were surveyed. The responses were surprisingly similar 

across departments and individuals, and through these responses a draft was created and attached for future 

consideration. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

STAFF  RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff requests that Mr. DeYent’s research and conclusions be considered in the development of these guiding 
statements. 

SUGGESTED  MOTION(S): 

N/A 

Page 33 of 51



P:\Agenda Pending Items\2017\05‐02‐2017\2_Staff Report HR Intern Mission.docx 

 

 

 

Page 34 of 51



P:\Agenda Pending Items\2017\05‐02‐2017\Connect NC Bond\Staff Report for Council Agenda ‐ ACCEPTANCE OF CONNECT NC BOND GRANT & ADOPTION OF PROJECT BUDGET.docx 

STAFF REPORT 

SUBJECT:  ACCEPTANCE  OF  CONNECT  NC  BOND  GRANT AND  APPROVAL  OF  
PROJECT  BUDGET  FOR AN  INCLUSIVE  PLAYGROUND  AT  GRAHAM  
REGIONAL  PARK 

PREPARED  BY:  FRANKIE  MANESS  &  BRIAN  FAUCETTE  

 
REQUESTED ACTION:    

Accept the Connect NC Bond Grant and approve a project budget for the planning and construction of an inclusive 

playground to be located at Graham Regional Park.  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

In April of 2017, the City of Graham opened the first section of Graham Regional Park.  Future plans for the Park 

include multiple athletic fields, a recreation center and several playgrounds.  One of the playgrounds planned to be 

located near the recreation center is an inclusive playground.  In late 2016, the City applied for a Connect NC Bond 

Grant to assist in providing the inclusive playground.  An Inclusive playground is an intergenerational playground 

designed for individuals to play together regardless of physical challenges or disabilities.  An inclusive playground 

goes beyond ADA accessibility by focusing on all types of disabilities, temporary or permanent and is designed not 

just for those confined to wheelchairs.   

The City has been awarded $500,000 from the Connect NC Bond Grant which requires acceptance by May 15, 2017 

and construction to begin by April 30, 2020.  When approving the application for the grant in 2016, Council agreed 

to provide a match in the amount of $350,000.  The proposed $850,000 project includes a fenced playground 

featuring inclusive equipment and a poured in place rubber safety surface, parking lot, sidewalks, restroom, water 

fountain and associated planning, grading, utilities and contingency.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Matching funds in the amount of $350,000 are proposed to come from the Fund Balance in the General Fund.  

STAFF  RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval 

SUGGESTED  MOTION(S): 

I move we accept the $500,000 Connect NC Bond Grant and approve the project budget. 

Page 35 of 51



P:\Agenda Pending Items\2017\05‐02‐2017\Connect NC Bond\Staff Report for Council Agenda ‐ ACCEPTANCE OF CONNECT NC BOND GRANT & ADOPTION OF PROJECT BUDGET.docx 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE 
GRAHAM REGIONAL PARK INCLUSIVE PLAYGROUND  

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAHAM, NORTH 
CAROLINA, that pursuant to Section 13.2, Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North 
Carolina, the following Capital Project Ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 
Section 1. The Project authorized is the Graham Regional Park Inclusive Playground. 
 
Section 2. The officials of the City of Graham are hereby directed to proceed with this 

program within the terms of the project.  Staff is authorized to execute required 
grant documents and change orders within the budget ordinance. 

 
Section 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the City to complete the 

project: 
   

Connect NC Bond Grant 
Proceeds from Fund Balance in General Fund  

$500,000
$350,000
$850,000

 
 

        
Section 4. The following amounts are appropriated for this project: 
 

Professional Services  42,500 
Construction 
Contingency 

775,000 
32,500 

$850,000 
  
Section 5. The Finance Director shall report on the financial status of this project as directed 

by the City Council and will inform the Council of any unusual occurrences. 
 
Section 6. Copies of this project ordinance shall be made available to the City Manager and 

the Finance Director for direction in carrying out this project. 
 
Section 7. That this ordinance shall take effect on July 1, 2017. 
 

This the 2nd day of May, 2017. 
 

________________________ 
Jerry Peterman - Mayor 

  
ATTEST: 
 
______________________ 
Darcy Sperry, City Clerk 

Page 36 of 51



P:\Agenda Pending Items\2017\05‐02‐2017\Connect NC Bond\Staff Report for Council Agenda ‐ ACCEPTANCE OF CONNECT NC BOND GRANT & ADOPTION OF PROJECT BUDGET.docx 

 

 

Page 37 of 51



Page 38 of 51



Page 39 of 51



Page 40 of 51



Page 41 of 51



P:\Agenda Pending Items\2017\05‐02‐2017\Pine Street Bike Lanes\Staff Report Bike Lanes.docx 

STAFF REPORT 

SUBJECT:   IMPACT  ALAMANCE  GRANT  FOR  ACTIVE  TRANSPORTATION  

PREPARED  BY:   NATHAN  PAGE,  PLANNING  DIRECTOR  

 
REQUESTED ACTION:    

Approve receipt of grant. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The lane widths for much of Pine Street are in excess of what the Manual 

Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), the American Association of State 

Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO), and the National Association 

of City Transportation Officials (NACTO) recommends. As such, this is an 

opportunity for Graham to utilize existing right‐of‐way and construct a 

bicycle route from the vicinity of Jones Street west along Pine Street until the 

vicinity of Home Avenue.  

Last year Staff began investigating a number of locations, and found this 

route to be the easiest install from a fiscal point of view, as well as a location 

with vulnerable road users who are not yet able to operate an automobile. 

This route would allow students from Graham Middle School to safely ride 

into the downtown and therefore access the amenities and opportunities 

located in our Central Business District and help afford residents within 

several blocks of downtown an active transportation alternative. 

The City has secured a $60,000 grant from Impact Alamance to install bike 

lanes.  Conceptual planning for this route is well underway and the next step 

of engineering design will indicate the location of on‐street parking for Pine 

Street, as well as the potential treatments for all intersections. Any 

unexpended funds will be used to create crosswalks at local schools and 

parks. These will be designed by children in the community, but will be 

reviewed by Graham and NCDOT staff for conformance with safety 

requirements. 

   

Page 42 of 51



P:\Agenda Pending Items\2017\05‐02‐2017\Pine Street Bike Lanes\Staff Report Bike Lanes.docx 

FISCAL  IMPACT:  

The city should anticipate no out of pocket expenses, as the grant is intended to pay for all potions of the proposed 

project, from engineering and planning to construction of the bicycle lanes. However, staff time may be used for 

the installation of the crosswalks. 

STAFF  RECOMMENDATION:  

Approval. The Graham 2035 Comprehensive Plan calls for additional Active Transportation options within the City 

of Graham. Also, Policy 3.3.2 specifically aims to limit street width, reducing roadway lane widths in order to slow 

down vehicular traffic in areas where bicycle and pedestrian traffic is encouraged. There are other policies and 

goals related to this theme, most evident under Goal 3.3 Multimodal Street Design but also, strategy 3.2.3 begins 

to look at an interjurisdictional bicycle route. 

SUGGESTED  MOTION(S):  

I move we approve the resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept $60,000 in grant funds from Impact 

Alamance. 

   

Page 43 of 51



P:\Agenda Pending Items\2017\05‐02‐2017\Pine Street Bike Lanes\Staff Report Bike Lanes.docx 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION GRANT 
FUNDS FROM IMPACT ALAMANCE  

WHEREAS, Impact Alamance has identified access to active transportation as a need within Alamance 
County, and has released a call for proposals which suit this need; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Graham was awarded $60,000 from Impact Alamance to install bicycle lanes and 
crosswalks near our schools and parks; 

WHEREAS, the proposed grant will require staff time for installation, but will pay for all material costs; and 

WHEREAS, citizens will benefit from the additional travel options, particularly those students at Graham 
Middle School. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GRAHAM THAT the City Manager is authorized to accept a payment of $60,000 from Impact Alamance 
that will be utilized to pay for the installation of a bicycle route on Pine Street, as well as the possible 
installation of crosswalks. 

Adopted this the 2nd day of May, 2017. 

 

Jerry Peterman - Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________ 
Darcy Sperry, City Clerk 

 

 

Page 44 of 51



Begin Bike Lanes
4' Width - Both Sides of Street

No On-Street Parking

Begin Bike Lanes
4' Width - Both Sides of Street

No On-Street Parking

Cemetery

Middle School

City Hall

Jail
USPS

PINE ST

HARDEN ST

MA
PL

E S
T

ELM ST

ME
LV

ILL
E S

T

MA
RS

HA
LL

 ST

MA
IN

 S
T
WARD ST

BANKS ST

HO
LT

 AV

MARKET ST

ALBRIGHT AV

POPLAR ST

JO
NE

S 
ST

HOME AV

MCADEN ST

PARIS ST

NO
RT

H 
ST

GILBREATH ST MCGEE ST

OA
KG

RO
VE

 D
R

WA
LK

ER
 AV

LONG AV

ON
EI

DA
 S

T

MI
LL

 S
T

BURTON ST

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON
 S

T
TOWN BRANCH RD

GATES AV

FIELDS ST

GRE
EN

 ST

EN
FIE

LD
 D

R

NORTH CT

MC
CL

UR
E 

ST

FL
AN

IG
AN

 S
T

HUNTER ST

COURT SQ

CREEKSIDE CT

ELM ST

GILBREATH ST

MARKET ST

MA
IN

 S
T

ON
EI

DA
 S

T

I1 inch = 400 feetalley, williams, carmen & king, inc.
E N G I N E E R S  &  A R C H I T E C T S
740 chapel hill road
burlington, n.c. 27215

p.o. box 1179
(336)226-5534

CITY OF GRAHAM
PINE STREET
EXHIBIT MAP

  THIS EXHIBIT MAP IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY. 
  AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY, UTILITIES, PARCELS, AND OTHER BOUNDARYS
  WERE REPRODUCED FROM ALAMANCE COUNTY GIS FILES. WHILE ALL 
  EFFORTS ARE MADE TO ENSURE ACCURACIES, ALL LOCATIONS ARE 
  APPROXIMATE. THE CITY OF GRAHAM AND ALLEY WILLIAMS CARMEN & KING, INC.
  ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR INACCURACIES WITH THIS DATA.

Page 45 of 51



 

P:\Agenda Pending Items\2017\05‐02‐2017\Encroachment Discussion\Staff Report Encroachment.docx 

STAFF REPORT 

SUBJECT:   ENCROACHMENT AGREEMENT  FOR  PRIVATE  DEVELOPMENT  IN  R.O.W.  

PREPARED  BY:   NATHAN  PAGE,  PLANNING  DIRECTOR  

 
REQUESTED ACTION:    

Discuss right of way encroachment regulation and permit process. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

City staff has been approached with increasing frequency 

regarding semi‐permanent encroachments into the right 

of way.  Currently, the Ordinances only have a process for 

a developer to temporarily occupy the sidewalk (e.g. 

Sidewalk Café at The Press), but this carries the 

requirement that no structures be attached to the 

sidewalk. The decreasing popularity of franchise 

agreements between the City and utilities has also 

created a need for more formal encroachments into our 

right of way. 

Projects that are currently under review that this would 

apply to include the Nicks’ building, the Brantley Auto building, as well as the old Carver’s location. These each 

have different impacts to the right‐of‐way, and some share jurisdiction with NCDOT. 

There are a number of models from other jurisdictions, from simplistic single page agreements (Hillsborough) to 

elaborate thirty page documents (Cary). The Planning Department has recommended adoption of an approach 

similar to the City of Durham. 

FISCAL  IMPACT:  

Undetermined 

STAFF  RECOMMENDATION:  

Receive input and undertake legal investigation. 

SUGGESTED  MOTION(S):  

N/A 

Page 46 of 51



 

    Page 1 

Sec. 62‐57. ‐ Franchises and licenses.  

(a) Services in the public way subject to a franchise. In order to place or maintain facilities in the public 
way, all persons that operate utilities that the city may franchise under the authority of G.S. 160A-319 
or City Charter sections 67 through 73 shall apply for a franchise to be approved by the city council in 
accordance with the City Charter. Services for which a franchise shall be required include telephone; 
electrical power; water; wastewater collection, treatment, or disposal; gas production, transmission or 
distribution; transportation; solid waste collection and disposal; off-street parking systems; and 
stormwater management and drainage services. All franchises shall provide the city with a 
performance bond or other performance guarantee. All franchises shall obtain a permit from public 
works prior to performing work in the public way.  

(b) Licenses. A user shall apply for a license prior to placement or maintenance of facilities in the public 
way in situations in which the city does not issue franchises. The director of public works or designee 
shall determine, in his/her discretion, the necessity of a license and the type of license, taking into 
consideration the length of time the facilities will be in the public way, the potential impact on the public 
way, and the city's prior practice. Facilities for which a license shall be required include monument 
signs, monument mailboxes, fiber optic cable, irrigation systems, specialty street signs, canopies, 
specialty pavement structures, and other features.  

(1) Monument signs and mailboxes license. A monument sign and mailbox license may be granted 
by the city council to construct and maintain a monument sign and/or monument mailbox within 
the public way.  

(2) Telecommunications license. A telecommunication license may be granted to construct and 
maintain equipment that transmits/communicates between points specified by the user and 
provides services that are regulated under the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996 and are 
not subject to a franchise agreement. This equipment shall be referred to as telecommunications 
system. The city council may grant a telecommunications license for users proposing to construct 
and maintain more than five miles of telecommunications system within the public way. The public 
works department may grant a telecommunications license for users proposing to construct and 
maintain five or less miles of telecommunications system within the public way. A performance 
bond or other performance guarantee for the work shall be provided by the applicant to the public 
works department prior to receiving the license.  

(3) Licenses for other facilities. The public works department may grant a license to construct and 
maintain other facilities not included in (1) and (2).  

(c) Compliance with all other requirements. The requirements of sections 62-51 through 62-55 apply to 
franchisees and licensees and all franchisees and licensees shall apply for necessary authorizations 
from the department in addition to the franchise or license they hold.  

(d) Contents of franchises and licenses. Licenses and franchises shall, at a minimum, contain the following 
provisions:  

(1) The identity and legal status of the user;  

(2) The name and contact information for the officer, agent, or employee of user responsible for 
communications with the city, which shall be continuously updated as the information changes;  

(3) A general description of existing and proposed facilities and the portions of the public way to be 
utilized for such facilities, with additional specifics as may be required by the department;  

(4) A description of the services, if any, to be offered within the city, and the parts of the city or 
properties within the city where such services will be available, which description shall be updated 
as services change;  

(5) A description of the services or facilities to be offered to the city itself, or to other public or 
governmental institutions within the city, if any such services are to be offered;  

Page 47 of 51



 

    Page 2 

(6) Acknowledgment that the license or franchise does not limit the city's police power and that the 
city may enact additional ordinances, standards, and requirements that will apply to user;  

(7) Acknowledgment that the user will be required to obtain additional permits and approvals from 
the city beyond the license or franchise;  

(8) Acknowledgment that the user is responsible for all damage caused by its contractors;  

(9) Commitment to pay for all damages that arise in connection with the user's acts or omissions in 
the public way or the user's facilities;  

(10) Commitment to defend and indemnify the city for all claims and liabilities that arise in connection 
with the user's acts or omissions in the public way or the user's facilities;  

(11) A description of bonds or performance guarantees and insurance that are required, if any;  

(12) The time period of the franchise or license;  

(13) In the case of a franchise, acknowledgment that transfer or assignment requires approval of the 
city council under section 70 of the City Charter.  

(e) Assignment. If a license allows assignment, notice of the assignment shall be given to the department 
not less than 30 days prior to the assignment, with ownership and contact information updated to 
reflect the proposed assignment.  

(f) Information available to city. All licensees and franchisees shall provide the city i) all books, data, 
records, maps, plans, GIS data files, billings, and payments or submissions to the state relating to the 
user's facilities and their function, location, income, history, maintenance, and repair, and ii) filings with 
the state utilities commission. The documents shall be provided within a reasonable period of time, not 
to exceed 30 days. The city may examine all such information at no cost. If information is copied for 
the city, the costs of copying, if any, shall be limited to the charges of a commercial copying facility 
selected by the city.  

(g) Declaration of forfeiture. The city may declare a forfeiture of a license or franchise and all of the user's 
rights arising thereunder in the event the user does not comply with material provisions of its license 
or franchise, or is in substantial violation of this ordinance or other standards adopted by the city. The 
city shall give a franchisee or licensee at least 30 days' written notice of its intent to declare a forfeiture, 
which notice shall include a description of the noncomplicance. The user shall have 30 days from 
receipt of the city's notice to cure the noncompliance or to make substantial progress toward such 
cure, as determined in the reasonable discretion of the city.  

(Ord. No. 14665, § 2, 8-18-2014)  

Editor's note— Ord. No. 14665, § 2, adopted August 18, 2014, set out provisions for use herein 
as § 62-56. Inasmuch as § 62-56 already existed, and at the editor's discretion, those provisions 
have been included herein as § 62-57.  

Page 48 of 51



Page 49 of 51



Page 50 of 51



Page 51 of 51


	05-02-2017 Agenda Regular Session
	1. Honorary Reconitions and Proclamations:
	BSG Lady Heat 10U Basketball Team

	2. Consent Agenda:
	a. Approval of Minutes - April 4, 2017 Regular Session
	b. Tax Releases
	c. Street Closure Request by Alamance County Manager Bryan Hagood
	d. Approve Resolution to Grant Easement to Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC

	3. Old Business:
	a. Public Hearing: Appearance Commission (AM1701)

	4. Recommendations from Planning Board:
	April 18, 2017 Planning Board Minutes
	a. Public Hearing: Fee for Appeals (AM1704)
	b. Public Hearing: Planning Board Requirements (AM1702)

	5. Mission, Vision and Values Presentation
	6. Connect NC Bond Grant:
	a. Accept $500,000 Connect NC Bond Grant and Approve Project Budget

	7. Impact Alamance Grant for Active Transportation:
	a. Approve Resolution

	8. Encroachment Discussion
	9. Issues Not on Tonight's Agenda



